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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP AMENDMENT #2 AND 

SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202004069, Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) Data Collection and Management

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	August 21, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	September 11, 2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	September 18, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time (as amended)

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	proposals@maine.gov 

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.



	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFP:

1. The Proposal Submission Deadline is amended.



	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFP:

1. All references to Proposal Submission Deadline and due date are changed to:
September 18, 2020, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers.
	Question #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Page 9, Part II, Survey Methods, Section A3c, d: Please confirm that advance letters will not be sent to cell phone respondents. 
	Advanced Letters shall only be sent to landline phone Respondents only.

	2
	Page 16, Section B5, Financial Viability:  Our Company does not currently have a D&B Comprehensive Insight Plus Report.  Will the three (3) most recent years of Financial Statements audited or reviewed by a Certified Public Accountant suffice for evidence of our financial viability?
	No, Bidders are required to submit a Dun & Bradstreet Comprehensive Insight Plus Report.

	3
	Page 34, Appendix J: The link provided to the Weekly Performance Report Template Appendix J links to a" monthly statistical spreadsheet".  Can you provide a copy of the Weekly Performance Report template?
	The awarded Bidder will be required to submit monthly performance reports.  Appendix J provides an example of the type of report the Department will require.  The Department and awarded Bidder will determine the final format for the required monthly performance report during contract negotiations.   

	4
	Page 5, Advance Letters: The RFP indicates that for calendar year 2019, nineteen thousand, three hundred sixty-five (19,365) Advanced Letters were mailed to select Maine residents.  Can you tell us how many advanced letters should be included in our cost proposal for each year of the contract?
	The Department expects the number of Advanced Letters to remain approx. the same as in 2019.

	5
	Page 6, Average BRFSS Survey Length:  The RFP indicates that for calendar year 2019, the average BRFSS survey time length for landline calls was approximately twenty-eight point thirty-one (28.31) minutes and cellphone calls was twenty-nine point twenty-one (29.21) minutes.  Is this the approximate survey length we should base our costs on for each year of the contract?  
	Yes.

	6
	Timing: What is the expected date for the start of data collection in 2021, the initial contract year?
	The Department expects data collection to begin on January 2, 2021.

	7
	What is the funding source for this project?
	Federal and Dedicated Revenue Funds.

	8
	Pg. 11 Section D, 2: 

a. Are resumes for each Interviewer conducting interviews on the project required? 

b. Or, can a composite resume be sent for interviewing staff?
	a. No resumes are required for interviewing staff.  Resumes must be submitted for project lead(s).
b. N/A.

	9
	Pg., 10. Section 5, e: Can unobtrusive monitoring of 10% of all interviewer calls, with a monitoring report submitted for verification of monitoring, be used to meet the requirement of this section?
	Yes, the awarded Bidder may provide a report that monitors ten percent (10%) of interviewers who dial on Maine BRFSS.  Unless supervisory monitoring of ten percent (10%) of all interviews is being routinely conducted, a five percent (5%) random sample of each month’s interviews must be called back to verify selected responses for quality assurance. 

	10
	Survey Part A and Survey Part B: Multiple pages and sections: Are these two separate questionnaires with separate sample, or one survey that is duel/split path? 
	Refer to Appendix G in the RFP:  In this split survey the “Core” (the required national survey) is the same for each survey; the optional part of the surveys is different and are referred to as Part A and Part B. These are two separate questionnaires with separate sample.

	11
	Survey Part A and Survey Part B: 

a. Will the CDC provide a CATI programmed questionnaire for Part A and the vendor will be required to program Part B? 

b. Or will a CDC CATI programmed questionnaire for Part B be provided as well?
	a. The awarded Bidder provides all CATI programming.

b. N/A.

	12
	Pg. 9, section 3: C and D. 

a. To confirm. Vendor will do advanced mailing and be required to provide all materials, postage, etc.? 

b. The CDC will provide all sample information needed for mailing?
	a. Yes 

b. Yes.


	13
	Pg. 11 Section E, Table 2b: Has the Maine BRFSS achieved a response rate of 70.5% in the past. And if so, when was the year that response rate was last achieved? 
	The overall Response Rate in 2019 was eighty-four-point five percent (84.5%).

	14
	Pg. 12 Section E, Table 2c: What has the average Maine BRFSS Refusal Rate been since 2010?
	Nine-point seven percent (9.7%).

	15
	Page 5, Part I.A: What is the value of the current contract? 
	Contracts can be obtained at the Division of Procurement Services website.  Enter the contract number 20171215000000001969.

	16
	Page 5, Part I.A: Can you please provide a copy of the most recent contract for the Maine BRFSS? 
	Refer to the answer to question number 15 of this document.

	17
	Page 6, Part I.A: What are the 2019 landline response rates?
	Eighty-one-point three percent (81.3%).

	18
	Page 6, Part I.A: What are the 2019 cell phone response rates?
	Ninety-point five percent (90.5%).

	19
	Page 6, Part I.A: What are the 2018 & 2019 landline production rates (number of completed interviews per hour)?
	The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the number of completed interviews per hour for landline production rates.

	20
	Page 6, Part I.A: What are the 2018 & 2019 cell phone production rates (number of completed interviews per hour)?
	The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the number of completed interviews per hour for cell phone production rates.

	21
	Page 12, Part II, E: What are the 2018 & 2019 landline refusal rates?
	2018 – eighteen-point six percent (18.6%).
2019 – five percent (5%).

	22
	Page 12, Part II, E: What are the 2018 & 2019 cell phone refusal rates?
	2018 – seven-point two percent (7.2%).
2019 – five percent (5%).

	23
	Page 30, Appendix G: What percentage of partial completes may be counted toward the total number of completed interviews?
	The percentage of partial completes cannot be greater than ten percent (10%) of the number of completed surveys.

	24
	Page 10, Part II, 5.e: The RFP states that vendors must verify 5% of all completed surveys each month. The CDC allows for 10% monitoring in lieu of verification interviews. Will Maine allow the vendor to conduct 10% monitoring instead of 5% verification calls?
	Yes.

	25
	Page 30, Appendix H: Are the advanced letters printed in black and white or color?
	It’s at the Bidder’s discretion.

	26
	Page 9, Part II.A.3.a: Is the survey conducted in English only?
	Yes.

	27
	Page 14, Part III.C.2.c & Page 27, Appendix D: Page 14 states that File 4 should be submitted in Excel. Within which File (1-4) should bidders include Page 27 Appendix D – which is in Word?
	Yes, Bidders must include Appendix D (PDF format preferred) as well as the Cost Proposal’s Excel spreadsheet.  

	28
	Page 14, Part III, C.2.c: Can bidder submit File 4 as a pdf file?
	Yes, however the preferred format is in Excel. 

	29
	Page 27, Appendix D: For the proposed cost line – is this the bidder’s cost for the initial period of performance only?
	The Bidder must submit a cost proposal that covers the entire period of the initial contract and subsequent renewals.  

	30
	Page 15, Part IV, A.7: Can signatures be electronic, not ink?
	Electronic signatures are allowed; however, the State of Maine only recognizes AdobeSign and DocuSign as acceptable, legal e-signatures. 

	31
	Page 11, Part II, D 1-4. The RFP requires bidders to respond to the staffing requirements listed in Section D in both the 10-page narrative of “Services to be Provided” and Attachments 7, 8 and 9. Can bidders provide this staffing information in Attachments 7, 8 and 9 only?
	Yes. 

	32
	Page 9, Part II, 3.c: Does Maine send advance letters to the cell phone sample? 
	No.

	33
	Page 5, Part 1, A: The RFP refers to a “mailed survey” – is this referring to the advanced letter, or does Maine mail a hardcopy of the questionnaire to respondents?
	The mailed survey is referring to the advanced letter.

	34
	Page 10, Part II, B.2: How many in-person site visits and in-person regional BRFSS meetings should contractors assume per calendar year?
	One in-person site visit per calendar year as permittable under the State’s executive orders.

	35
	Page 15, Part IV, A.3 and Page 17, Section II: Are Attachments 7, 8, 9, and 10 excluded from the 10-page limit in the response to Proposed Services?
	Yes. 

	36
	Page 7, Part I, B.7: The RFP states that all proposals will be considered public records and available for public inspection per the State of Maine FOAA. Are bidders permitted to submit a redacted version of their proposal for the public record so that trade secret and financial information are protected from public disclosure? 
	Yes, Bidders may mark some portion of their proposal as confidential.  If a Bidder marks some portion of their proposal as confidential then the Department will provide the Bidder with a reasonable opportunity to object to public disclosure of the proposal.  The Department, however, provides no assurance regarding whether any portion of the proposal will ultimately be determined to be confidential and not publicly disclosed.  

	37
	Page 27, Appendix D: Can bidders propose a cost-plus fixed fee contract type? If no, please provide clarification regarding the type of contract that will be awarded.
	The contract is based on a fixed fee only.    

	38
	Page 8, Part II, 1.d: Is the FIPS 199 categorization considered low for the CATI survey data collection tool? 
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.

	39
	Page 8, Part II, 1.d: Will the contractor be required to submit a Privacy Impact Assessment?
	The Department does not require a Privacy Impact Assessment but does require the awarded Bidder to assure safe keeping and security of all components of the CATI software system and maintain confidentiality of all BRFSS Part A and Part B Survey data. 

	40
	Page 8, Part II, 1.d: 

a. Will the contractor be expected to participate in the certification and accreditation (C&A) effort? 

b. If so, what is the expected level of involvement from the contractor?

c. Are there any ongoing C&A activities that should be included in the proposed budget?
	a. The Department is not familiar with the certification and accreditation (C&A) Effort.

b. N/A
c. N/A

	41
	Pg. 5, Part 1, Section A specifies sending advanced letters. Should letters be sent to matched addresses for landline sample only, or both landline and cell phone sample?
	Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document.


	42
	Pg. 5, Part 1, Section A 

a. Can the State provide the 2021 expected address match rate for the monthly advanced letter mailings for landline vs. cellphone sample? 
b. Will the state please provide the current 2020 match rates?
	a. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot give an expected 2021 match rate. 
b. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot give a match rate for 2020.

	43
	RFP p. 6, Part 1, Section A states that the 2019 survey averaged 28.31 minutes for landline and 29.21 minutes for cellphone. The sample letter in Appendix H states 20 minutes. What average survey length should bidders assume for the 2021 BRFSS survey? 
	Refer to the answer to question 5 of this document.

	44
	Pg. 7, D. Contract Term

What is the anticipated funding level or ceiling for this contract?
	The Department declines to answer.

	45
	Page 8, Part II Scope of Services to be Provided 

The RFP states “ensure narrative responses are presented in a format which reflects the respective header titles”. Please clarify how the “format” should be presented to reflect the header titles. Does this include font and having the information in the order it is presented in the RFP? 
	The Bidder’s proposal should mirror the outline provided within the RFP for each requirement to be responded to.

	46
	Pg. 9, Section 3 Survey Methods

In 2020 the CDC released revised data collection protocol guidelines that reduce the number of call attempts. Does the State of Maine intend bidders to adhere to this new set of guidelines or to the legacy guidelines?
	The Department intends to adhere to the guidelines set forth within the RFP.

	47
	Pg. 9, Scope of Services to be provided

Please provide additional requirement information for adding subcontractors. Are there any incentives with adding a subcontractor?
	Refer to Part V.A.2. of the RFP.


	48
	Pg. 11, D. Staffing Requirements

We assume that the four listed items under D. Staffing Requirements (pg. 11) should be responded to within Attachments 7, 8, and 9 and NOT within the 10-page-limited Scope of Services.  Please confirm.
	Refer to the answer to question 31 of this document.

	49
	Pg. 11, E. Performance Measures

a. This section refers to performance measure data submitted using Appendix F.  Please confirm that Appendix F does not need to be submitted with the proposal, but instead refers to a requirement to be satisfied during work on the project. 

b. If Appendix F does need to be submitted with the proposal, please confirm that it does not count toward the Proposed Services section’s 10-page limit.
	a. Correct, the Excel spreadsheet in Appendix F will be used as a reporting tool during the contract periods resulting from this RFP.
b. Bidders must provide a response to Part II.E.1. but do not need to submit the Appendix F Excel spreadsheet with their proposal.

	50
	Pg. 12, F. Reports

Please confirm this section does not require a response within the proposal, but instead refers to a requirement to be satisfied during work on the project. 

If this does need to be submitted with the proposal, please confirm that it does not count toward the Proposed Services section’s 10-page limit.
	Bidders must respond to Part II.F.1. and 2 of the RFP which is counted towards the 10-page limit.

	51
	Pg. 13, Section C. Submitting the proposal.
Please advise if there is a maximum file size for email transmission.
	File size limits are 25MB per e-mail.  Bidders may submit files separately across multiple e-mails, as necessary, due to file size concerns. All e-mails and files must be received by the due date and time listed above.

	52
	Pg. 13, Section C. Submitting the Proposal

Does the State prefer the four files be submitted within one zip file or attached as 4 separate PDFs to the email?
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.

	53
	Pg. 15, A. Proposal Format

Should consecutive numbering be applied across all four separately submitted files, or should numbering restart at one for each file?
	Consecutive numbering must be used across all four files.

	54
	Pg. 16, Attachment 1

We assume that the Attachment 1 and Appendix C (to be submitted within File 2) are the same.  Please confirm.
	Yes.

	55
	Pg. 16, Section 5. Financial Viability

Is there any other reporting that can be provided in lieu of the Comprehensive Insight Plus Report?
	Refer to the answer to question 2 of this document.

	56
	Pg. 17, Section II Proposed Services, 2. Implementation – Work Plan

We assume that the work plan must be submitted using Appendix I and included as attachment 10 (in other words, Appendix I and Attachment 10 are the same)—and does not count toward the 10-page-limited Scope of Services.  Please confirm.
	Yes. 

	57
	Pg. 18, 3. Scoring the Cost Proposal

The RFP states “the lowest bid will be awarded twenty-five 35 points”. Please confirm whether the lowest bid will receive 25 or 35 points. 
	The lowest bid will be awarded thirty-five (35) points, refer to Amendment #1 at the Division of Procurement Services, Request for Proposals (RFP) webpage.

	58
	Pg. 20, Part VI Contract Administration and Conditions 

Please confirm the terms and conditions that would be applicable to this contract are listed in the Service Contract form found on the Division of Contract Management website and if not, please provide the link to the correct terms and conditions for review. 

Please also confirm that we can provide exceptions to the terms in our proposal. 
	Terms and conditions can be found on the Department’s Division of Contract Management website, refer to Amendment #1 at the Division of Procurement Services, Request for Proposals (RFP) webpage.


	59
	Pg. 27, Appendix D, Cost Proposal Form

In Appendix D Cost Proposal Form, the All Other Expenses section list items for pricing normally included as an indirect cost allocation (Overhead). It is standard accounting and pricing practice for these costs to be estimated as a percentage of a base of allocation, such as direct labor. Can an offeror with this standard practice provide a calculation for Indirect Allocated as the base value multiplied by a percentage for the All Other Expenses section?
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.  

	60
	Pg. 27, Appendix D Cost Proposal

In Appendix D Cost Proposal Format, the All Other Expenses section list items are possible to be broken out into direct costs for only this project, i.e. Consultants – Direct Service, Consultants – Other and Travel expenses. Can the offeror provide these costs in the All Other Expenses section while still using an Indirect Allocation methodology for Occupancy, Utilities, Telephone, etc.?
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.  

	61
	Pg. 29, Appendix F

We assume this is supplied as reference only and does not need to be submitted with the proposal.  Please confirm.
	Refer to the answer to question 49 of this document.

	62
	Pg. 30, Appendix G 

What is the average survey length for the Asthma callback survey?
	2019 - adult fourteen point nineteen (14.19) minutes.
2019 - child fifteen point twenty-eight (15.28) minutes.

	63
	Pg. 30, Appendix G 

Appendix G estimates the number of completed surveys. Do partial completes count towards these estimated totals?
	Yes.


	64
	Pg. 34, Appendix J

We assume this is supplied as reference only and does not need to be submitted with the proposal.  Please confirm.
	Refer to the answer to question 49 of this document.

	65
	Pg. 35, Appendix K

We assume this is supplied as reference only and does not need to be submitted with the proposal.  Please confirm.
	Yes.

	66
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

a. What is the production rate for the most recent year of data collection?
b. Please split by landline, cellphone, and asthma callback.
	a. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the production rate.
b. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the splits.

	67
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

a. What is the price per interview for the most recent year of data collection? 
b. Please split by landline, cellphone, and asthma callback.
	a. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the price per interview. 

b. The Department does not collect this data, therefore cannot provide the splits.

	68
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

How many records per completed landline interview were there on the 2019 BRFSS survey?
	Refer to Appendix G of the RFP. 

	69
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

How many records per completed cellphone interview were there on the 2019 BRFSS survey?
	Refer to Appendix G of the RFP. 

	70
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

How many records per completed landline interview are there currently on the 2020 BRFSS survey?
	Refer to Appendix G of the RFP.

	71
	[Question not related to particular RFP section]

How many records per completed cellphone interview are there currently on the 2020 BRFSS survey?
	Refer to Appendix G of the RFP.
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